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Alleged

Washington ” R L

The Justice Depa'nment yester- *;:

day took steps to revoke the cmzen-
ship of a Carmichael, Calif, man -
because he aﬂegedly concealed hxs
background in the Nazis’ mfamous
SS and helped Adolf ‘Eichmann .

plan the persecutlon orf Eumpean 5.7

Jews. &t

0 oy,

- < e h

The govemment filed a com-.
plaint in US. District - Court in’
Sacramendp to lift the cmzens!:up of
Otto Albekcht Alfred yon Bolschw-
ing, th.."éasi N i L

Ra.o&amed cmensmp Apnl 6, .
1958 vml;put disclosing his partici-
patiog ~dm the Nazi~ program of
racial, religious and political. perse- "
cumm., thg govemment smd.

The mmplamt charged that
von B g was a member of
the Schutzstatfel, or S8, ‘an elite
~ unit of the Naz:n Party and worked

Ex-Nazi

‘with the SS- Ofﬁce df Jewah'

Affaus, s

Von Bolschwmg anegedly ad- -
vxsed that office and Eichmann in -,
planmng persecuuon “and forced ™
. emrgration. ‘of Jews Irom Namf &

oontroued areas.
Exchxhann, later head of the

“Office .of Jewish Affairs, was exe- -

cuted in Israel in 1962 for his partin - §

. the mass mrders of Jews during’
World War IL. ;

“The “complalit charged” that

. von Bolschwing ‘advocated and. de- -
'vised proposals’ that: mcluded com- . B
" “‘deemed to be imm1c31 or poh
German economy, use of physical \” . .
mtumdauon against Jews, and use

- plete exclusion . of Jews Trom the

~of anti:Jewish ; prupaganda to

" achievé the forced emigra

Jews fmm Germany 3

'iormatwn to the

.s.‘"ﬂ'

the Naz’i Pmy

.Von -Bolschwxng. born in
Scboenbruch, Germany. "was ‘an
:--agent of the SS from 1934 until at
. deast” 1941, the Justxce Department

suspi

. Umled Prcn




s s . _Record Searchlight
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WASHINGTON (AP)'— The Jus-
tice Department filed sult Wednes-
day to strip U S. citizenship from a
L 71-year-old California man who, it

sild, was a Nazi SS caplain and an

idviser to Adolf Eichmann on the
persecution of Jews during World

War 1.

liled in U.S. District Court in Sac-
ramenlo against Otto Albrecht
Alfred von Bolschwing of Carmi-
chacl, a Sacramento suburb.

The Justice Department’s Office
of Special Investigations, which s
charged with tracking Nazi war
crimiinals n this country, alleged In
its brief that von Bolschwing con-
cealed his inembershlp in the Nazi
Party and in the $S and his role as
an adviser {o the Intelligence
branch of the SS and the Gestapo
when he applied for ‘and recelved
U.S. citizenship In New York City
in 1959, .
. Von Bolschwing said In a tele-
phone interview that the allegations
fire “not true” and that he worked
with U.S. inteiligence during the
awar.

According to the Bovernment,
von Bolschwing joined the Allge-
mceine (General) SS, an elite Nazl
unit, in 1940 and rose to thé rank of
captain the next year. A

The government said he was an
fdlicial of the SD, the S§ Intellig-
‘nee arm, from 1934 until 1943,
furing  which time he allegedly
‘udvocated and devised proposals
vhich inctuded a complete exclu-
ion of Jews from the economy of
ermany, the use of physical in-

imidation against Jews, and the

s¢ of anti-Jewish propaganda to
chieve the forced emigratlon of all
ews from Germany."

’ | .

A three-count civit complaint was

B S——

Thursday, May 28, 1981

arges Carmich

between September 1949

. and January 1941, a violent, Fas."

cist, anti-Sernitic Movement in. Ro-
mania.kncwn\as‘the “Iron Guard”
murdered and persecuted Jews ang
Bon-ethnic Romaniang. InJanua
1941, the Iron Guard staged 5
Tebellion against the government of
Romania during which jt “brutally
murdered or tortured" large num-
Bers of Jewish citizens, according
> the government. ,

* The Justice Department sajg that
von Bolschwing, as head of the Sp
for Romania, €ncouraged and ajdeq-

Tebellion and pogrom '
» protected
J_rop'guard leaders after those
qptxvztles. were unsuccessfyl and
aided their escape into Germany.

.;According to the government
von Bolschwing was also an o[ﬁciai
of the Reich Security Main Office
established jp September 1939 tc;

- unify under jtg jurisdiction the SD,
A (.;estapo and Crimina} Police, ’

: The S8, the SD and Gestapo were
qeclared to be crimina] organiza-
tions by the International Military

. :I‘rib'unal at Nuremberg, Germany,

In 1946 for their "programmatic
and massive participation in the
‘commission of war crimes and
crimes against humarity,” the Jus-
tice Department said.

_Reached by telephone in Califor-
nia, von Eoischwing said, “Iy'g not
true. T never serveq in the 88 or
Gestapo or SD. 1 did serve jp the

"08S for the Americans, and I dig

harachute into Austria. 1t was dan-
kerous work. I did major work in

ael man is e

- charges that von Bolschwing is not

The OSS, which stood for Office
of Strategic Services, was the.U.S. .
military precursor during World
War II of the Central Intelligence
Agency. | » '

In an affidavit filed with the suit,
Charles Gittens, deputy director of _
the Office of Special Investigations,
said the information on von
Bolschwing’s participation in var-
ious™Nazi units had been obtained
by him from documents in the-
Berlin Document Center, a reposi-
tory of captured German docu-
ments — including personnel’
records of the Nazi govern-
ment — maintained by the United
States Mission in West Berlin.

> The government’s complaint

and has not been a person of good
moral character because of his
substantial and extended participa- -
tion in the Nazi policy of racial,
religious and political persecution.

"The government sald that be-
cause he was not a person of good
moral character. and because he
concealed his Nazi actlvities on his
citizenship application, he was inel-
igible to become a U.S. citizen
under the Immigration and Nation-

ality Act of 1952, )
~ {

.. The government’s brief noted
that the citizenship application on
swhich von Bolschwing allegedly -
failed to reveal Nazi activities con-
tained a warning that cltizenship
imay be revoked for concealment of
ihe material fact o for willfu
misrepresentation, '

}
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SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA, Thursday, May 28,

Otto A_lbi'ecm Alfred von Bolschwing a{

Double Agent?

C a‘lfal Man Linked
To Nozi War Cr:mes

By Wayne Wilson N :
and Ted Bell
Bee Staff Writers -

A Tl-year-old Sacramento man who says he was an agent for Ameri-
can intelligence in World War 11 was accused by the U.S. government
Wednesday of having been a high-ranking adviser to Adoif Eichmann
during the Nazi persecution of Jews.

In a.complaint filed in U.S. District Court, the Justice Department
moved to strip Otto Albrecht Alfred von Bolschwing of his U.S. citizen-
ship, the first step toward deportation proceedings.

- Specifically, the complaint alleges that in his 1859 naturalization
application, von Bolschwing concealed his wartime membership in the
Schutztatfeln, an elite unit of the Nazi Party khown as the SS, and his
leadership role in the Sicherheitsdienst, or SD, the intelligence-gather-
ing arm for the Nazi Party, the SS and the Gestapo (State Secret Po-
lice).

As head of the Romanian SD in 1541, von Bolschwing “encouraged

.and aided” the Iron Guard, a violent fascxst anti-Semitic rebellion in

Romania during which “large numbers of Jewish citizens ... were
brutally murdered or tortured,” the complaint alleges.

See NAZI, Back Page, A24
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on Bolschwmg ‘provided inf ormatxon and ad

;'Eichmann and partlclpated*fn planmng the program 0,

‘persecution and forced emigration of Jews from aréas.under the con
trol of the Nazi government of Germany,w&le affidavit states

WS, from the! sconomy of Germany.
tion” against. Jews and the use of antn-Jewxsl

Agnes, 73, said she hr

fying von Bolschwmg s statement that he was workingfor ;
“'m absolutely bewudered Agnes von - Bolschwmg said.. ”"It just’
doesti’t hake sense to me because there i al ds of; vxdence of the leader assisted by von B 615 ~ >

helphe provided us during the war.’.. =, 5, SouTce. close’ to. the. vestngatlon was the'sect’s top student leader

'She said von Bolschwmg came to the U ted States in 1938 became - .Valerian Trifa, who showed up.in the United States in about 1950 an
a lieutenant colonel in the 0SS and was dropped behind.the lines to '~ .subsequently. became the archbxshop of the Romanian Orthodox Ep1<
direct 'U.S. underground- operations :during the war. At one time, hie™ “copate of Americain Detrait. - 2

d'their escape lnto German .

was captured by the Gestapo and imprisoned for nine months, she - Trifa, who lives in Grass Lake Mlch agre d to voluntanly surrer

said. When he came out of the:prison camp, von Bolschwmg wenghed ' _der his cmzenshlp in August: 1980 but he lS no appealmg the denat1

only 104 pounds, “and he’s 6-2,” she said.- 13z mhemsls dnit fious o rahzauon order, 2 : Y g
Agnes von Bolschwing said she hasseen a’ certmcate of thanks from The mvestxgatlon ais beheved to ave led authormes to vo

Bolschwmg, who has always used his true namé 4in'the United States.™”
. »~-Von Bolschiwing; who was born in Schonebeck Germany, on Oct. 1'
1909 Ppracticed law in Berlm and Vienna, said }ns wife; Agnes ' -
_ Before the war, she sald he raced cars ‘and skiéd.“He had'a fabl
+ loys: life,” she-said:*“Now; ‘when he’s old-and- s1ck and‘can't defen
“himself, for this.to happen just makes me furious.”
Von Bolschwmg has been married four times, his w1fe sald and he
one child, a son, Gashert who is-a lawyer specralmng m catastropln

the province of Trrol Austna, “for the llves he saved." :

te ‘rlble, shockmg news ;
=Agnes von. Bolschwmg said- her husband '
‘became theé CIA, and: “after he ‘got -out f the CIA,

ther physlcally or mentally, to underg__' ’s__tlch A'strain; %
Us. Attorney Wllllam B, Shubb wh_ '_iﬁled the complamk against von”
“the- al

B ] ~German: operatlons for Cabot i, lus ‘wife said; He also was self-er
The complamt seeks: o revoke voh Bolschwmgs ‘itizenship on. " : - -ployed asan international eonsultant on busmess methods in chemic.
grounds-he. lllegally.procuredt bis na?turahzabon by g;o 1 ent of plants, she said, and.in‘the process became a member of the Pan A
matetial facts or by wﬂltul e and United Arrlmes 100 OOO-Mlle clubs. ‘ g .i, YN S
of good moral character - i '

"signed by Charles Gxttens -"deputji'
of Special lnvestlgatlons. estabhsh 443

t1ve Seniors at' 6350 Rlversme Blvd. in’ the south area;’ RRE T

“ There he méet Agnes, whom he married March 1, 1980 at the chap
of the 2nd Ward of the Church of Jesus Christ of- Latter-day Saints. -
- Agnes, a Morinon; converted Otto; her third ‘husband, to the religic
wish Affalm oﬁ;ce, from at leasg 1937 ‘untll 1939 theafﬁdavxt states " She said. ‘Agnes’ first husband died when she was 27 years old, and t!

A source close to the.investigation ofvon Bolschwmg said Wednes- .- . second. marnage lasted 27 years.’ ‘She said ‘she had been a wxdow 1
day that von Bolschwing accompanied ‘Adolf Eichmann to Palestme inoag seven years when she met Otto von Bolschwing. =~ % e
1936 or 1937 a trip presumably desxgned to fmd a des j "for J . Asked if.von: Bolschwing ever exhibited antl-Semmc tendencles
her presence, she shapped,’ “None *whatsoever How -could he-ha

Erchmann was conwctetl and executed m‘
5 SR e
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Randy Olson — Mercury

Gaunt and allmg, Otto Albrecht von Bolschwmg is v1sxted by his lawyer, Arthur W. Ruthenbeck in convalescent home -

.

v

A-N azi’s brllllant ’U S careér strangled 111 a Weh Of llés

y Pete Carey
aff Writer

For the past 10 years, Otto Al
echt Alfred von Bolschwing’s
refully constructed life in Amer-
a has been coming apart a pxece
a time.

<

i

e .
He was presxdent of a high—tech-
nology investment firm with head- .
. quarters in Sacramento and._ sub-
sidiaries in the Silicon Valley. It
went bankrupt in a 1971 scandal.
. He was a doting husband until -
hls78mllng wite kxlled herself in
19

He numbered among his busi-
ness associates millionaires, bank-
ers and scientists. Then his brain
stem was hit by a rare disease two

years ago, sending him into isola-

tion at a Carmichael rest home.
‘He told friends he had worked

for the Americans during and after '

World War II. But in May, the

federal governmept began pro-
ceedings to deport him for lymg»

about his Nazi past.

In a widely publicized attempt
to revoke von Bolschwing’s citizen-
ship, the Justice Department ac-

~cused him of helping Hitler’s per-

.secunon ‘of European Jews and of
‘being an associate of Adolf Eich-

‘mann, the architect, of Germany's

mass-killing program.

“The disclosures come at the end
of a long, improbable career that
took von Bolschwing through the
' Back of Section,Col. 1
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stafd chtegorically that von Bolschw- -

.Jng was not a U.S. agent either be—
forear during the war,

gnes von Bolschwing, the ac.

‘ Wﬂsd Inan’s 724ear-old wife, said”

o

giy the sgovernment’s clauns

0. ot @ltgr her position, which is"
fﬁlaﬁme,ﬂhited States is “picking on
aﬁﬁqﬁ sick.oid man. It’s s0 long ago. .

o dvey Had - anything against him,’

¥, didn’} they do it back then?”

gres. ‘vori Bolschwing, who said
' mba'nd 13 S0 hysically and,
¢ 1] that he doesn’t compre- |

Fadaga: -
ya mén is innocent until heis .
it proven him guilty.” .

k peéﬁay i1 his convalescent hospital

~ bed; his wife said.
) '-éannne the CIA refused

ffg a% fo.comment on, a r‘eport
n;a Washington news source that

¥ clsqhwing did, indeed, work
*?;smm Central Intelligence Agency

n 1949 and 1950.

"“would. bé dmmaterial to the com-
3 plaint- Rending agamst him now,
"uShubbsafd "
‘Such; mx‘ormatlon, if it exxstb,v

b

nwouid be classified and unavailable, :

Yrevin e hith, Shubb said, ‘and it
" wauld not.change the grounds for
L the comx&iaint against .von Bolschw- -
?hlﬁ,*WkiSl are that he concealed his -
. miembership in Nazl organizations,
ﬁ959 naturahzatlon applica-c

ﬂ
}s happeningio him, even '

qé‘gumy, and to me, they. have--

. Polschwing was served with |,
i]ernment’s complaint Wed-~

11 Germany, but only after the war, -

.51 von: Bolschwing .was recruited ’
a8 a.ClA agent after the war, it

'The”?lustice Department has

1 moved to strip von Bolschwmg of his

R IR S. citizenship, clalmmg his aileged
membefrship in the infamous
Schutzstaffeln der Nationalsozialis-
.tischen “Deutschen Arbeiterpartei
(SS) and other Nazi organizations
are evidence he “lacked good moral
. Character and attachment to the
. prihciple,s’pl the Constitution of the
“United States,”
* “In 1946, the SS was declared to be
a criminal organization by the Inter-
‘nationaf ‘Military Tribunal at Nu-
rembem, «Germany, which cited its
programmatic and massive partici-
“pation’in the commission of war
di'lgnes find crimes against humani-
ty the complaint states. :
Actording to the complaint
“agai it him, von Bolschwing rose
through the ranks of the §S to be-
come a captain in January 1941.
~ He also was an adviser to convict.
- ed mass murderer Eichmann in the
“Yewish Affairs” office of the Sicher-
Jhéeitadienst des Reichsfuehrer §S,
“¢emmonly known as the SD, accord-
ingto the complaint.

. The “Jewish Affairs” office coln
lec 'ed “historical, statistical,’ eco-

ic- dnid’ JCultural information on
the Jews for use by the Nazi govern-
"ment inite systematic persecution of
Jews, and recommended méasures

* for. -carrying out the persecution of
< Jews,” thé complaint states.

Yon Bolschwmg has 20 days from: .
tne date of service to reply to the
iovemment s complaint agamst
“him, ‘

-,;,Almuugh his wife said she and
her husband are being advised by a
“Jaw firm in San Francisco, von
_-Bolschwing has yet to obtain legal
representation

~4% Yon Bolschwing’s only child, son .
Gikbert, Is a San Francisco attorney,

. but he was reported to be in London

: «W’edneﬁday ‘-
X ‘~*'If1e Office of. Special Investiga-

tiﬁns, ‘which initiated the action; was
bHished under the Carter admin-

: 'is’tratiou in 1974 $pecifically to flush

““6ut:Nazi war Criminals stili living in
ithe Usiited States.

"According to.-its director, Ryan
lthe office ‘operates under a $2.3 mill-
“ffon aanuat budget with a staff of 50,
fnciud!ng 20 attorneys, six investiga-
\, tor§ and six historians.

Ry ’Ihe office is inyestigating an esti- .
dted 300 Nazi war cﬁmmais now

" Fesiding in the United States, miost of

giém: Eastern Eurppeans. ' :

M iccard!ng to Simon Wiesenthal,
the- 72-year-old Nazi .conceniration .
‘¢amp ‘survivor who is conceded:to
bé’ the world's leading hunter of war

riminals, von Bolschwing is one of
Oy abo*ut 10 6r 12 German war
“criminals believed to be in the Unit-
‘ed States,

: Ryan wauld not comment on
MWiesenthal’s observation, saying
“ynly. . “Mr, Wiesenthal as always,
speaks for himself, He does not
- speak for the Justice Department” #
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By S. LYNNE WALKER
R !AC!AM!NTO UNION STAFF WRITER

— A Sacramento man accused by the

U.S. government of being a Nazi §S .
captain during World War II is -

unable to defend himself because
the Central Intelligence Agency has
ordered him not to talk, defense
-attorney Arthur Ruthenbeck
charged Wednesday.
- The CIA, citing a possible secrecy
agreement, ordered 71-year-old Otto
“von Bolschwing not to speak to his
- ~attorney without authorization,
_Rut.henbeck said. -~ .
CIA eattorney Barbara Pollack

{1

N

) requested in a tape-recorded conver--

- sation that von Bolschwing’s son,

-Gus, “submit certain background
informatiori to the CIA through me

. and we will obtain clearances

Aeweed N azi’ s defeme
mmpered by CIA ordeﬁ‘
not to talk, attorney says

could be possxble" because of von
Bolschwing's reluctance to talk, said
the CIA’s interest suggests ‘‘they
must have some real legitimate
interest in this case.

“They don't send a staff attorney
and another CIA operative to inter-
view every little old man who says
he worked with. the CIA)” - sald
Ruthenbeck. ‘‘Why would they go to~
this effort if there were not some
CIA involvement?"

Von Bolschwing is accused by the

" U.S. Department of Justice of con-

on (von Bolshwing’s attorneys) so .

your father can speak with them
Ireely,” according to court docu-
- ments.

- Ruthenbeck quoted Pollack as
“$aying von Bolschwing ‘“‘would be
obligated to comply” with a secrecy
* agreement, should one exist, “and
refrain from discussing any classi-
Iied information with me.'

~ Von Bolschwing told Ruthenbeck
earher this month that “he would
‘not talk to me regarding . . his
Involvement with the CIA unless
both he and I have a clearance from

* the CIA.”
Ruthenbeck who said he has been

“forced to resort to ‘‘guessing what

cealing his wartime membership in
the SS. . _
Further, the Justice Department

.alleged, von Bolschwing failed to

disclose in a -1959 naturaliZation
application his role as adviser to
Adolf Eichmann during the Nazi
persecution of Jews. -

Von Bolschwing, who has emphy- .
sema and neurological disorders and
lives in a Sacramento nursing home,
contends he was an agent for Ameri-:
can mtelhgence during World War
I1.

He said in an earlier interview
that he ‘‘did major work in Germa—
ny'for the Allies. )

Von Bolschwing's respanse to the
allegation was to be filed Friday in
federal court in Sacramento, but
Ruthenbeck said he has been unable
to get any information from his
client ‘“‘because he is unwilling to’
‘'disclose some aspects of the case|
unless he is authorized by the CIA to:

. objection to ‘Mr. von Bolschwing

"We're in the process of attempting

speak to me.

“My hands have been tied,” said
Ruthenbeck. ‘“‘I'm not trying to
delay the case; I'm just trying to
get autherization. for my client to
talk to me. -

“We're in a real Catch22 situa-
_Hon,”! he sald.. “One arm of the
govemment prosecutes the case and
another says you can't talk to your
client. .

“Mr. von Bolschwing is .caught in
the middle of this bureaucratic
struggle between the CIA and the
Department of Justice. He's basical-
ly being denied meaningful access to
counsel by the federal government,”
Ruthenbeck contended. -

U.S. Attorney William Shubb
countered that “the CIA has no

speaking freely with his lawyer.

to get a letter from the CIA saying
they have no objection.

‘I don’t have any reason to
believe the CIA {s trying to deprive
bim of his right to counsel,” said
Shubb.

Regardless of whether the CIA
knew of von Bolschwing’s back-
ground, Sbubb said it should have
been revealed on the c1tlzensb1p
application.

" “Our allegations concern t_he man-
ner in which he got his citizenship,”
said Shubb. *‘Certainly, the CIA does
not confer cinzenship "
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\ccuse_‘_;ﬁsorme‘r Nazu m’fCaIlfornla faces loss of citizenship

)
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WASH]NGTON (AP) e ’I‘he try, aﬂeged in its brief that von rank of captaln the next year. ' tion and advice to the'SD and in  mania during WhiCh it “‘brutally * tion the SD; Gestapo and Crimi-
stice* Department - fued suit:, Bolschwing concealed his mem- ,:The government-said he wag.., particularly to Adolf Eichmann,. murdered or. tortured’ large’ -nal Police.

xdnesday to strip Y1.8." citizen- & 4 4 bership in the Nad Party land in", an official. of ‘the' SD), the SS ¥ who was then an official of Office . numbers of Jewish citizens, - :BCr.

ip from a 71.yearsgld Califor- iy the SS sind his role ag an’ adviser; telligence ‘arm,’ from' 1934 iintilA¢ 11" 112, on Jewish organizations’. ‘COl'dms to the government, ' ; -/ Reached by: meph‘)"e in Cali-
} man’it.says was‘a Nazi SS.*’ to the Intelligence branch 'ofthé 11941, during whlch ‘time he' plleg«f&& and" forded-emigration of.> The-Justice Department sald* 'fomja, von Bolschwing sald, -
ptain and an adviser to Adolf, ' SS and the Gestaps whén he edly ““advoeated' and devisqd Tlews.” that von Bolschwing, as head of "“It’s not trueI never served in’
chmann on the persecution of .applied for and received U.S. cit- propasgls which included a  The government sald von the SD for Romania, encouraged the SS or Gestapo or SD. I did
wi-during World War II, .  izenship in New_ York g:jty in  complete exclusion of Jews from . Bolschwing headed the'SD In Ro- _.and aided the Iron Guard in jts serve In the OSS for the Ameri-
Aithree-count civil complaint > 1959. T S s the";ecopomy of . Germany», ?he‘ mariiain late 1940 and early 1941, ¢ January 1941 rebellion and po- . cans, and T did parachute into
s filed in U.S. District Court in Von Bolschwing sa 3n a8 tel se"of physical intimidatiom It'said that between Septembert grom, -protected - Iron -Guard ‘rAustris. It was dangerous work.Y
cramento’ against Otfo. Al-"- phone interviéw that the allega-':. against "Jews, ' and’ the ‘use’of ; 1940 and January 1941, a violent, - leaders after these activities "I did major work in Germany”
acht Alfred von Bolschwing of - tions are *‘not true’ and that he anti-Jewish. propaganda to - Fascist, anti-Semitic movement Were unsuccessful and aided " for the Ame“CﬂnS

rmichael Cauf -Sacramen- Yworked ‘with U.S; intenigence* -achieve the forced emigratxon of . in Romania known as the “Iron their escape into Germany. ;

suburb S e ".during the war. - . " all Jews from Germany." - Guard’! murdered and perse-., ' According tg the government,  The OSS, which stood for Of-

fhe Justlce Department s Of-'- " According to the govemment From 1937 to 1839, the govem- “d-cuted Jews and non-ethnic Ro': ’*NOH Bolschwing was also an bf- fice of Strategic Services, wag:
manians, ' In ' January 1941,  the - ficial of .the Relch Security Main the U.S. military precursor

8 of Special Investigations, - von Bolschwing joined the All- ment said,: von Bolschwing was.
Iron Guard staged a rebe).uon_ ;Otfice, established inSeptember during World War Il of the

ich is charged with tracking '. gemeine (General) SS, an elite an employee of Office I1:112 of -
@ war criminals in this coun- °, Nazi unit, in 1840 and rose to the the SD and ;'proyided;‘informa: 1 against t the governmeht of -Ro-;, 11939 to unify under its jurisdic-. \Cnntral Intelligence Agency '




ewas. aGerman spy in Palestme o ersenthal saxd
-~“We know tms from Lqur mtelhgence. ‘We know: the names of his Ger--
: man fnends m HaiIa and Jerusa“lem The Germans Were preparmg to::




" "By VEDA FEDERIGHI
‘A_CRWN!O'UN?ON ﬂ_AFF wlml PR

The Justice FD'é;parin-lent acted

| Wediesday to strip citizenship from-

- a"71-year-old Sacramento man
accused of being-a Nazi SS captain

and adviser to Adolf Eichmann dur-

“ing World War IL::17 7.7
Otto Albrecht Alfred von Bolschw-

- ing,'in a
his bed

during the war as a double agent.: --
His 72-year-old 'wife, Agnes,’

Bt e

y 27 —The Justiée
today to revoke the

* WASHINGTON, ’

Ma,
of .a 7l:year-ld California

n‘on the ground that he had concealed
his activity as a Nazi who helped Adolf

moved
Eichmann plan the persecution of Jews.

o O
: §g
2 Q
28

.‘1:‘

Sy

telephone interview from
in a south area nursing
‘home, denied the charges, insisting ..
that he worked for U.S. intelligence

‘man‘on

. reporters in the living room-of their

residence near. the nursing home

that she had seen’ papers proving

her husband aided the Allied cause. .
4] feel 1. am -a very patriotic
American and have always. loved

‘my country,” said the Texas-born

woman, who has been married to

von Bolschwing for dyear.” .
“BUT THIS IS more’ like.

persecuting a sick old

“%.In its brief filed

. Court in Sacramen

"“ment alleges th

. The department filed a com laint in
Federal District Court in Sacra?nmto 3
'and in particular to.Adolf Eichmann,

a
-3

Jewish organizations and the .
expulsion of Jews from Germany. he

Eichmann was executed by the ISraeﬁ:

fred von Bolschwing of Carmichsel,
Calif. The complaint said that from .19314'
t0°.1841," Mr. “Bolschwing had; besn an’
agent or employee of a German' unit
known as the Sicherheitsdienst, or S.D.,
which collected intelligence for the Nazi
Party leadership, and that he had “pro-
vided information and advice to the S.D.

Government in 1962 for his part in send-

céncel the citizenship of Otto Albrecht Al-

joined the SS as a second lieutenant .
in 1940 and was promoted to captain
within a year...The brief describes

_the SS as “an elite unit of the Nazi .

Party” ‘that the Nuremberg war
crimes trials declared a criminal

 organization “for-its programmatic
. and .massive - participation in" the -

: .. Bolschwing was .an’official.

““the intelligence arm -of
S ;

a,
from
was too ill to

 be intarviewed, But she sajd that
band had been & “double sget v o

rt--

gence officials,

!

e, Agnes,
Californi;

in 15859 after |

P : p
- “‘willtully - concealed material |

highapplicatioq_._

reached by tel

ering

y in
rman S.D.

. ¢He definitaly was working for the

hone toda;
United States and he has documents to-

to United States intelli
be worked for the Ge.

ing
when
proveit,” Mrs. von Bolschwing said, ““He

Mr. von Bolschwing had illegally pro- |

cured American citizenshi
having

= The Justice Department charged that

ing millions of Jews to their deaths in

WorldWarll, =7 .. -

P
said that her husband was sut!
emphysema and palsy, and

the United States in the late 30°

became a lieutenant colone! in the

came to

Office

of Strategic Services and
the Central Intelligence then went into

twoyears.”

c7 for about




V—-From AT -

period, he allegedly “participated In plan-

controlled areas. .

“In particular,’ (von Bolschwlng) advo—
cated and devised proposals which includ-
ed a complete exclusion of Jews from the
economy of Germany, the use of physicsl
intimidation agalnst Jews, and the:use of

[ forced emigratlon of all Jews from Germa-
ny,"” the government alleges. °

advice to the SD, and in particular to Adolf
Elchmann.. . . on Jewlish organizations and

provided information to the SD on persons
deemed to be Inimical or politically suspi-
clous to the Nazl Party and Nazl Govern-
ment of Germany.”

In late 1940 and early 1941, the govern-
ment sald, von Bolschwing was head of the
SD for Romanija. It said that during that
period,  he aided the Iron Guard, “a
violent; fascist, anti-Semitic movement in

Jews and non-ethnic Romanians.”

In January 1941, the Iron Guard staged
a rebelllon against the Romanian govern-
ment, and von Bolschwing “encouraged
and alded” the pogrom ‘in which large

brutally murdered or tortured by the Iron
Guard.” .

INTERVIEWED BY telephone, von
Bolschwing sald, “It’s not true. I never
served In the SS or Gestapo or SD. I did
serve In the OSS for the Americans, and I
did parachute into Austria. It was danger-
ous ‘work. I did major work in Germany’’,
for the Americans, he sald. .

The 0SS (Office of Strateglc Servlces)
during World War II was the U.S. forerun-
ner of the Central Intelligence Agency.

Von Bolschwing, who spoke with an
accent and whose breathlng was torced

oL

and the Gestapo (the Nazi state secret }
police), from 1934 to 1941.. During that £

antl-Jewish propaganda to achleve the .

THE BRIEF malintains that von
Bolschwing '‘provided Information andl '

forced emigration -of Jews . .. . (and) -

Romanla which' murdered and persecuted

numbers of Jewish cltizens . . . were .

ning the SD’s program of persecution and ‘I
forced emigration of Jews" from Nazl—‘

.

William B. Shubb U S attorney for the
Sacramento area, said he had never heard .
of von Bolschwing before this case was
brought to his office by lnvestlgators for
the U.S. Department o( Justlce

THE CASE WAS the result of a lengthy

Special Investigations, which is ‘charged -
with’ tracking Nazl war crtmlnals in this~
country. L
Accordlng to an amdavtt lnformatlon
on von Bolschwing’s. participation in var<

- fous Nazl units had been obtained from:
documents in the West Beérlin's Documentt husband's balance. “He" falls, and he's 6 Bolschwing 16 not and has not'been a-

feet 2, and I'm 5 feet 8, 80 I couldn t take person of good moral character because of-
© care of him anymore.” " T

Her husband, a German baron, was
born in 1909 in Schoenbruch, Germany. She . political persecution: - )
-sald he came to America In 1933, was

srwdai n Habamnnt Aslanal in

Center, a repository of captured German™
and Nazi government documents. :

Mrs. von Bolschwing said that her '
husband had been Interviewed twice In’

February by “two egents from the CIA -

AL cws o oe_la e

N released, the 6-foot-2 von’ Bolschwtng

of the ‘Tyrol (southern Austria) for lives

{ ,(and von Bolschwing) was .In"charge of
:U.S. underground operations at that time. ”

) _ than 25 high Nazl omclals for prosecution.*.

B ols c h w I n g
Lo w]T DOESN’T make sense to me,” she
" ‘said. “There Is- a}l klnds of evldence what

that her 'hus—' '
ban "Semitic ‘'and had married a half-Jewish
was 0 "member’
.of "the Nazi
“elite ':SS'*dur._in_g '
: World War I
. ‘-'?convicted ' he

. ly after the war. '

; Sh“ pho'o by Bob Mooro

: settled " she satd

HER HUSBAND has been very 111 Ior
first showing signs of .
clinical depresslon for which he spent.a
week at Americdn River HOSpltal in June.
"He was agatn hospitalized in November,
Investigation by the department'’s Office of- *'suffering from emphysema’and neurologl
cal;/disorders, "and :“had 'to go.lnto a’
nurstng home, where hé's beern ever since "
excépt for when he went to the hoapltal
with pneumonia In Aprtl i Mrs von

Bolschwlng said.
She,sald his’ lllness has aﬂected her

nearly a year,

ed shortly after the marriage. On"a:books

{
X

"HE WAS IMPRISONED by the SS (or
nine months in 1942 and 1943 ang Interro-
gated every day,"” she sald. When

welghed 104 pounds, his wife sald. *
She sald that her -husband has “a
certmcate of thanks from the government’

saved ‘when Allled armles. came through‘

She described another letter whlch“
thanks her husband for bringing In “more

“I have seen 'the letters,” she sald;'_
addlng that she was _"absolutely bewll-‘
dered" by the government 8 charges L 1

he did for us.”
She said her husband was not antl—

. woman, since deceased, In Germany short—

Von Bolschwing was “head of Cabot oil
in Germany”' before coming to the United
~ States to live in the 1950s, his wife saidi A
few years later lie returned to head the
German ‘branch of & chemical company
and returned to the United States In’ the
" early - 1960s, she sald, . to: work ° “aé'’ an
~ international consultant on businéss man-
" agement of chemical firms. He has been
retired and living In Sacramento several‘
years

~'The couple met when they wére both’
livlng in -a .Greenhaven ' senlor citizens
apartment complex and wed In January
1980. A converted -Mormon, - Mrs." von
-Bolschwing sald that her husband convert-‘

shelf in the living room are volumes of The.
Book of Mormon ln Engllsh and in, Ger-._
- man. . . . i)

" THE COMPLAINT charged that von';.
his- substantial and extended participation
in the Nazl policy of raclal, rellglous and

The'government said that von Bolschw-, .

laee e Inallaihla far 11 Q  sltizanchin



* Alleged Nazi Denies Fedsral Charge, Says He Spied For U.S..

~“He (von Bolschwing) Is being Amgncm army. He reailyllsnt a l"plxmnlng the §Dsprogram olpe

very: talkative man; he hasnt told cution and forced emigration- o(

me much about it.” -, Jews from areas under.the contml
f h i t o

Mrs. von Bolschwing said her of ! e Naz governmen lGerms

** husband had been:inja” nursing ::
home since last November with
emphysema and disorders “0f
brain and nervous system

Allan A. Rya dlrector of the.. - -
s-Office of Spe-+ charged with being ‘whit he was —

: en!
tlgations “gaid’ yesterday - an‘adviser. to Eichmann and direc
Bolschwing was Iying. * tor. of the $D in Bucharest. Roma

hia,” Ryan said. - S :

and’ claimed that he was a secret =
agent during the war with the U.S.

", Bolschwing has denied chargesthat  Office of Strategic Services, the Tricial’

" he was a high-ranking Nazi persecu.  precursor of the CIA. * %% that vort E

tor of Jews during World War II, Von Boischwing told the Asso- ““What : .

o at he $aid is not true. Our

and says he will fight elfor s by the, . ciated Press that he would respond - s case.relates from the middle 1930s Emotionally shaken ‘by the ac:

-, US. government10; ';"ke away s 'i‘i‘" court to.charges that he was 2 {1through’ ‘thewar, and during that" - cusatlons, von Bolschwing’s 73-year

o cilizegsl;ip . f gg % %&%L%ﬁ‘esmo;}? offxcferJ w!;ohwx;:(ed witg « perfod He Was not a double agent old wife, Aghes, said she had onl

v iy 55~ the Ulfice of .Jewls airs and .: for’the US or anything like that.  known her*husband- for .the. pas
Vor’ Bolschwtin%.denfeebled by?; ‘helped plan persecution, intimida-  He'was’not afﬁlla}t'ed 1%1 any way ~ yearand a half. P

dlseases and confined to a nursing’ tion and deportation of Jews. | witn the US;: government.” . b
EERE o don't know; anythmg abou

>+" home,.was accused Wednesday-of . ;Wi ,
T¥It's not true.” he sald. “I never - - % Thé Offfée of Special lnvestlga-' him before; ‘then, except what' he 'y

bemg top adviser to” Adolf Eich-% .
mann, the notorious mastermind of served in the S5 or Gestapo or SD / tions,-créatéd'in 1979, specializes i : * 11q 1o, shé saidd*Hé:told me- hé

“ . the so-called “Final Solution,”Hit->%(the Intelligence,branch of the SS). 1'% traéking | d6#h* Nazi war criminals was a double agent Wworki

i . ler's élabolical plan for the exterms" £ did ; serve ‘in the ,0SS ‘o the E{ i the Unitéd States. The office is * (.. 4l througls the.war, J,,',‘ﬁ fg;:g»
auon ot Jewg in: Europe; Ameﬂbans and+1 - did - parachute’ # nows rosecutlng 20 cases it court,. <7 ‘'wab i the: 'I'yrol S

oy S into¥Austria. ' It° was dangerobs .~ Ryl ‘Said"‘lnd ‘Investigating . 937"

He immedme!y deriled "thd." work 1 did major work in Germany other’ peépl_e suspécted of taking
Justlce Department 8- accusatxons (for the Americans).” e part in Na: atrocma :

e

%Sncramenm w et
Seventy-one- year-old Otto von

; In parucular defendant:{uc
Bolsthwing) advocated and: devhed '§
! proposals which ‘included a*éomﬁ

&

plete’ exelusion of Jews from the i)

“He is a very sxck man. He has
been in_the nursing home since’ ¥ physjcal intimidation against; Jéws,
November because he's so siek, not ,_;fni ‘the usé’6f anudesvxsh ‘p 3

3" ganda to achieve the forcedem
lon-of all Jews from Germany"§ t!m.
ovgrnment charged.

stomplain :
" does not charge von: ’Bolschwlng ‘us. Atwrneyi Willlam'# 8k
- o ¥ with war erimes, but it does declare = 'said von-Bolschwing would Nave:
e was rdirectmg‘ thé ‘under- "~ that'in his position as arf influéntial - days to anSWer the complahi
ground movement and helping the . Nazi - officer, he “participated in * .
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Undergroun(f Fugitive

Freed After

NEW YORK—Former Weather
Underground bomb factory fugitive
‘Cathlyn Wilkerson was freed from
jail yesterday by the state judge who
originally sentenced her to a mini-
mum term of up to three years in
jail on a dynamite charge. '

Wilkerson, 36, was impassive
when Supreme Court Justice Harold
Rothwax freed her. She had served
11 months.

The charge stemmed from a
March 6, 1970, explosion in a Green-
wich Village townhouse that resulted
in the death of three of Wilkerson's
Weather Underground comrades.
Police said the radicals were using
the townhouse as a bomb factory.

Radical Sought in N.J. Killing
BLAIRSTOWN, N.J.—State po-
lice are seeking three members of a
radical group in the slaying Monday
night of New Jersey state trooper
Philip Lomonaco, shot eight times
near a service area on Interstate 80.
The suspects are members of a
“left-wing *~ revolutionary  group”
called the Sam Melville-Jonathan
Jackson Unit, authorities said.
Suspect Thomas William Man-
ning, 35, of Boston, was identified
through “fingerprints found on par-
aphernalia” in a car believed used in
the killing and is wanted on a federal
bank-robbery warrant, they said.
Also being sought are Raymond
Luc Levasseur, 35, and Cameron
David Bishop, 39. Levasseur is
wanted  on' the same warrant as
Manning, police said, and is on the
FBI's most wanted list. :

Nazi Loses U.S Citizenship

An ailing former- Nazi, accused of
“ being a top aide to Adolf Eichmann
and of helping devise ways to per-
secute European Jews in the late
1930s and 1940s, surrendered his
U.S. citizenship but was allowed to
stay in this country because he suf-
fers from a fatal nerve disease, the
Justice Department said.

Otto Albrecht Alfred von Bol-
schwing, 72, of Carmichael, Calif,,
admitted to having been a Nazi and -
‘2 member of the SS, the elite Nazi
secret police, the department said.

While - denying 'he persecuted
Jews, von Bolschwing claimed he
had served as an American spy after

11 Months

World War 1L That could not be

determined on the evidence, but it is
known that after the war the United
States recruited former German in-
telligence agency chiefs.

7 Alabama Prison Hearing

MONTGOMERY, Ala.—Federal
appeals judges who blocked the early'
release of Alabama prison inmates
said they will hold a hearing Feb. 8
on overcrowding in the Alabama
prison system. -

U.S. District Judge Robert Varner

. had ordered prison officials to re-

lease 319 prisoners to ease cellblock
overcrowding and late yesterday low-
ered that number to 290 after deter-
mining that some did not qualify.

Too Dangerous for Release?

ATLANTA-—-As many as 900 Cu-
bans detained at the Atlanta Federal
Penitentiary may be too dangerous
to be released from custody imme-
diately, a federal official says.

. The assessment by Assistant U.S.
Attorney Douglas Roberto was de-
livered Monday to - U.S. District
Judge Marvin Shoob, who had or-
dered the Justice Department to
speed release of Cuban detainees
posing no threat to society.

Addenda

o Chicago archbishop Cardinal |

John Cody, 73, has been hospitalized

for the fourth time this year, the ||
archdiocese said. A hospital spokes-
man said Cody, who has a history of | |

heart trouble, was in fair condition.

e Trial of Ensign Stephen Baba of | |

Gaithersburg, Md., accused of pass-
ing secret Navy documents to South

Africa, was continued in San Diego | §

until Jan. 13 on a defense motion to
seek additional counsel.

o The Louisiana Supreme Court
delayed Monday’s scheduled execu-
tion of convicted murderer Benjamin.

4
s 0)

Berry and ordered a hearing to de-
termine whether a new trial should
be held because his lawyer allegedly
took drugs while defending Berry.

o Spilled oil ignited a fire on a
Maritime Academy training ship in
Buzzards Bay, Mass,, killing one per-.
son and injuring at least seven of the |

other 44 aboard, authorities said. -
From news services and staff reports
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Fdrmer Nazi Gives Up US. Cltlzenshlp
But Alleged Elchmann Alde May Remam Whlle in Ill Health

By RONALDJ OSTROW szes szaff Wrzter

WASHINGTON—A 72-year-oid )
former Nazi -accused of being an °
- aide to mass murderer Adolf Bich-

' mann surrendered his American
-citizenship Tuesday after  the

govemment promised not to deport -

- him unless his health improves.
- The move by Otto Albrecht
- Alfred von Bolschwmg of Carmi-~
> ¢hael, Calif.; is considered one of the
:most significant accomplishments -
‘ " of the Justice Department’s ongoing
. ‘effort to take U.S. citizenship away .
! from Nazis who entered the country
an false grounds. .
" Von Bolschwing,- who is bemg
treated in a suburban Sacramento .
nursing home for a neurological ail-
" ment; did not attend the federal
. eourt hearing on his case Tuesday
" in Sacramento. But his lawyer, Ar-
thur ' W. Ruthenbeck, said von Bol-
- schwing had gone over the settle-
* ment with the government "hne by .
lme »”

: Admits Member:hip - .
.SIn the agreement von Bol-
“schwing admitted membership in -
"the Nazi Party, the Schutzstaffel
+'(SS) and the SD or security semce )
of the SS. :
: But he denied the link ‘to E:ch-‘
“mann, architect of the so-called “ﬁ-‘
" nal solution of.the' Jewish quwtxon,

" “who ‘was executed by:lsrael in 1962

. for his central rol in the murder of

Gmﬂhon Jetws. - g% ‘3 B
- Although- strxpped of hls cmzen-

sh1p, von Borlschwmg can. contmue

PRV ———

to live'in the Umted States asarest’
ident alien. However, he is formally
deemed to have gdined his citizen-.".
ship illegally and to-have admitted :
membership in the Nazi groups. |

‘In & Different League'

=~ Referring to earlier cases, a

-. government official who insisted on’
. anonymity said von Bolschwing -
fenng from" supranuclear palsy, a

! was “by any measure in a different:

-league than the shooters or concen- * -
tration camp guards. He was at the

“top or near the top of those who for-
mpla_ted the persecution policies.™
* The Justice Department filed suit ™
against von Bolschwing last May,.
charging that he procured his
American citizenship illegally .in
1959 because he concealed his Nazi
. ties- and .persecuted .innocent per-
-sons inthe 1930s and 1940s... . - ..
Allan A. Ryan Jr., director of t.he
department'’s office of special inves--
tigations, which handles the Naz '

a4

" cases, said that if the case had gone’

“10 ‘trial the government was pre-'

~pared to prove that von Bolschwing -

-~had. devised 'ways of -persecuting
~Jews while serving as an assistant
to Eichmann before 1940

".'v‘

",.-' ‘Anti- Semlhcl’ohciex o

* Ryan said von Bolschwing had

;sproposed such policies as complete-
- ly excluding Jews from German -

_economic life, physically intimidat-.

. dng them and using anti-Semitic

‘propaganda to .bring about forced

N removal of all J ews irom Germany

A‘-. T ‘-\.‘“ H

S
BT s

| In 1940 and 1941, von Boischv}i'ng
. allegedly headed the SD in Buch-

arest, Romania, where, Ryan said,
the government could prove thathe -
‘implemented Nazz pohcles of per-

secution, "7

Von Bolschwmg demed carrymg
out any such activities. -
‘Ryan said von Bolschwing is suf -

progressive disorder that includes
impaired memory and mtellectual

;Hfunctxons. S
- ¢No Deportahon Procee&mg

-“We have agreed to institute -ne-
deportation proceeding so long.as
the condition continues,” Ryan said.

- “Should it abate, we can and will in-

-stitute sueh proceedings.”

Ryan “said von Bolschwmg S
. claim that he had served in the US.

* Office of Strategic Services and had

.parachuted - irito - Austria for the
-OSS, which was the forerunner of
...the CIA, was not true.

A5 for von Bolschwing's state-
ment that he becamé an agent for
U.S. intelligence after World War
I, Ryan and a CIA- spokesman de- -
* clined to'comment.” :

“The decision to enter into a con--
. sent judgment with von Bolschwmg
‘“was made by his office in consuita-
- tion with higher’ authorities in’ the
“Department of Justice and was not
reviewed by, or submitted for the
approval of,.any ot.her govemmem
agency. ’Rya.n said. e
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Echoes of the Holocaus

A half century affer the Holocaust, the U.S. charges

a 72-year-old Guilford man with participating in the extermination of Poland’ Jews.

By SCOTT BREDE

iling just over 100 suits
since 1979 doesn’t seem
like a huge caseload for a
government agency that
currently employs 10 attor-
neys and had an annual
budget of $2.89 million in 1996.

But much of the success of the
Office of Special Investigations lies in
its single-minded focus.

A unit of the U.S. Department of

See A PAST on PAGE 8

It can take five to seven years after filing
the complaint ‘before you'd actually get
[a defendant accused of Nazi war crimes}
out of the country,’ says Jeffrey N. Maus-
ner, right, a former trial attorney with the
Office of Speclal investigations. Mausner
Is shown here in Germany, where he was
interviewing witnesses.




Continued from PAGE 1

Justice’s criminal division, OSI’s mission
is to hunt down those responsible for
World War II atrocities who now reside on
U.S. soil under false pretenses—and boot
them out of the country.

In the 104 court battles it has waged in
its 18 years of existence, OSI has had 60
defendants denaturalized and 48 of them

removed from the U.S., says OSI Director :

Eli M. Rosenbaum.

Since June of 1996, the Washington,
D.C.-based office has not lost a case in
seven court battles, according to Rosen-

baum. Four of those defendants had their

U.S. citizenship revoked. The other three
were given orders to leave the country.

During that same period, “The whole
rest of the world went 0-2,” in war crime
prosecutions, he says.

Now, more than 50 years after the Holo-
caust, OSI is bringing that record to Con-
necticut in a showdown with a 72-year-old
Guilford man, who, it claims in U.S. v.
Walter Berezowskyj, participated in Opera-
tion Reinhard—the Nazi campaign to
wipe out Poland’s Jews.

The complaint, filed July 22 in U.S.
District Court in New Haven, doesn’t peg
any specific murders or other crimes to
Berezowskyj. But it alleges that the retired
machinist served as an armed guard at two
SS slave-labor camps in Nazi-occupied
Poland during World War IL. Berezowskyj,
the government claims in the complaint,
eventually ascended to the 10th Company
of the Death’s Head Battalion at the Gusen
subcamp of the Mauthausen concentration
camp, near Linz in German-annexed Aus-
tria. At Gusen, “[m}any prisoners were
murdered outright by the guards,” the

complaint charges. “Others died of :

exhaustion, starvation and disease due
directly to the conditions under which they
were forcibly confined,” the complaint
alleges.

Berezowskyj's lawyer, Brian M. Gildea,
of New Haven’s Gildea & Stevens, says he
represents a man who is not quite in touch
with his past. (In response, Rosenbaum
says, “We will disprove that at trial.”)

In 1975, Berezowskyj, according to
Gildea. underwent brain surgery at St.
Raphael Hospital in New Haven after he
fell from a tree. The injury has affected his
ability to recall past events. and, where he
does have memory gaps, Berezowskyj has
a tendency to fill them in with wrong
information, Gildea claims.

“I don’t have any proof to establish that
the claims of the government” are accurate

A Past on Trial

or inaccurate, Gildea says. Berezowskyj,
the lawyer adds, “hasn’t been able to tell
me that any of these facts [listed in the
recently filed complaint] are familiar to
him.”

Gildea says when he mentions the
names of the Nazi camps where the gov-

: ernment claims Berezowskyj was a guard,

his client doesn’t recognize them.

“At one point in time, [Berezowskyj]
said [at Nazi orders] he was removing
dead bodies from buildings,” says Gildea.
... Where that was and at what specific

 time, [ don’t know.”

His client, Gildea adds, generally denies
the government’s claims against him.
Berezowskyj was forced into slave labor

¢ Nov. 17, 1943, according to the govern-
: ment. At Gusen, the complaint alleges,
i guards had orders to shoot to kill any pris-
i oner who attempted to escape.

After the war, the defendant, according

i to the complaint, entered the U.S. under
i the Displaced Persons Act of 1948, claim-
¢ ing to have worked on farms during the
i years the government now claims he
: served as a guard at the Nazi camps.

The Displaced Persons Act, which

¢ allowed more World War II refugees to
¢ enter the country than were allowed by
; immigration laws existing at the time, pro-
. hibited the issuance of a visa to people
i who either assisted in the persecution of

any person because of race, religion, or

DEFENSE COUNSEL BRIAN M. GILDEA ASSERTS THAT WHEN HE MENTIONS

THE NAMES OF THE NAZI DEATH CAMPS TO HIS CLIENT, HE DOESN’T

RECOGNIZE THEM.

by the Nazis, his attorney says. People in
German-occupied territories during the
war, he says, “had the choice of living or
dying” when Nazis gave them instruc-
tions.

Berezowskyj, Gildea adds, considers
himself Ukrainian. He was born in Onko,
Poland, which ts now Vikno, Ukraine. The
former Soviet Union occupied the area in
1939, and less than two years later, it fell
to Gerrnan armies, according to the com-
plaint.

The defendant, the government alleges,
was recruited by German units and arrived
at the Trawniki training camp on or about

: Aprnil 7, 1943, At Trawniki, men were

trained to serve as guards and auxiliary

: police to assist in Operation Reinhard,

under which nearly two million Polish

¢ Jews were murdered, according to the
: complaint.

Berezowskyj, it asserts, served as an
armed guard at the SS Labor Camp Ponia-
towa and then was redesignated back to
SS Training Camp Trawniki before being
stattoned at Gusen. Under “Operation Har-
vest Festival,” Jewish prisoners at Ponia-
towa were murdered on Nov. 4, 1943, the
complaint states. The defendant didn’t
return to Trawniki from Poniatowa until

i national origin. or was involved in any

movement hostile to the U.S., according 10

the complaint.

The government is attempting to revoke

i Berezowskyj’s citizenship on the ground
: that he allegedly misrepresented himself
i by claiming that he did farm work during
¢ the war when he was issued an immigrant

visa in 1949, and when he sought natural-

© ization in 1981, the complaint states. Bere-
i zowskyj was granted citizenship in 1982.

Gildea says his client worked in a com-

¢ missary in Europe after the war. When he
i came to the U.S., Berezowskyj, he adds,

lived for about a year in Mississippi pick-

. ing cotton. He then moved to Connecticut.

where he worked in machine shops.

according to Gildea. Now retired, he and

his wife have five children and at least four

grandchildren, the lawyer says.

Mentally Competent?

Despite Gildea’s claims of his chient’s

: memory problem, John K. Russell. a Jus-
¢ tice Department spokesman, says the gov-
¢ ernment has “medical information” that
i finds Berezowskyj mentaily competent to

o - 20 _-



s* " trnial. Russell won’t say what kind of
n. cal information the government has.

Gildea, however, says his client was
>xamined by a government psychiatrist in
zarly July for about 45 minutes to an hour.
Berezowskyj has “not yet been evaluated
oy my expert,” the lawyer says. To make
matters more complicated, the doctor who
serformed the brain surgery on his client
1as passed away, and there’s been some
lifficulty in finding hospital records of the
1975 operation, Gildea says.

In May 1996, Berezowskyj, according
o his lawyer, received a letter from the
JSI requesting that he submit to an inter-
/iew with government officials. Bere-
:owskyj denied the request and retained
:ounsel, says Gildea, who has represented
lefendants in other OSI cases, including
“eodore Fedorenko and Anatas Bernotas.

Gildea unsuccessfully argued
‘cdorenko’s appeal before the U.S.
supreme Court. Since then, he has been
isked to assist other attorneys representing
JSI defendants in their cases, Gildea says.
n all, he has been lead defense counsel in
ix OSI cases, he says.

The suit against Bemotas was eventual-
’ ttled, and, the last time Gildea
L. ~ed, he was still living in Waterbury,
ne lawyer says. Attempts to reach Berno-
1s were unsuccessful.

Fedorenko, on the other hand, had his
itizenship revoked, and was deported to
1 U.S.S.R., where he was tried and exe-
uted for treason, Gildea says. A guard at
1€ Nazi death camp at Treblinka, where
00,000 Jews were put to death in gas

hambers, Fedorenko claimed on his visa |

pplication that he was a farmer during the
rar according to former OSI tnal attorney
2ffrey N. Mausner in a 1991 piece hw
rote for Nova Law Review.

The complaint doesn’t mention whether
ny country is seeking to extradite Bere-
owskyj so he can stand trial on war
rimes charges, and Rosenbaum, OSI's
irector, won’t comment spectfically on
ic case.

But Gildea says that even if the com-
taint’s assertions are correct, his client
oes not appear to be someone another
»untry would be interested in bringing to
ial. “You’re talking about a man who has
seventh-grade education, if that . . . and
as never in the position of any kind of
11" ity,” Gildea says.

complaint alleges that, at Trawniki,
erezowskyj held the rank of “SS-Wach-

mann (SS guard private).”

According to the OSI, only three of the
48 people the office has successfully
removed from the U.S. have been extradit-
ed to stand trial abroad.

A Tough Civil Fight

Though a civil action, a denaturalization
case, if “fought tooth and nail,” can seem
much like a criminal matter, says immigra-

tion law specialist James E. Swaine, of

The Law Offices of James E. Swaine in
New Haven, who is not involved in the
case.

Defendants in denaturalization cases
have opportunity for discovery, and, if for-
eign documents are involved, they can
contest their validity. “If I were represent-
ing [Berezowskyj], that's how I'd go about
it,” says Swaine.

Daniel E. Marcus, past president of the
Connecticut chapter of the American
Immigration Lawyers’ Association, says
once citizenship 1s revoked, it’s “pretty
much a given that {a defendant in U.S.
immigration court, where removal pro-
ceedings are heard, is] going to lose his
residence.” The doctrine of collateral
estoppel does apply, and immigration
judges tend to seek guidance from the
tindings of the federal court that granted
the earlier bid for denaturalization, adds
Marcus, of West Hartford’s Globman Mar-
cus & Chapple.

there’s insutticient evidence,” he says of
OSI cases that don’t make it to court.

When Mausner left the agency in 1986,
probably fewer than one out of 10 cases
investigated by OSI were ever brought to
federal court. he says. But ““probably now
they're filing a higher percentage of
cases,” he adds. :

There’s “more direct evidence” now
that World War II documents captured by
the Soviets are more available to the U.S.
since Communists there fell out of power.

Though Rosenbaum, OSI’s director,
won’t comment on what kind of evidence
his office has against Berezowskyj, or how
that evidence was acquired, Russell, the
Justice Department spokesman, says the
case was aided by “unearthed documents
that were not available to us prior to
1995."

Questions Documents

But Gildea, Berezowskyj’s attorney,
says documents in OSI cases can’t always
be trusted. “All of these events occurred 50
years ago. . . . Why did these documents
now surface? You have to have a great deal
of suspicion about these things,” he says.

Documents used by the OSI in their

A COMMON DEFENSE STRATEGY, SAYS A RESEARCHER AT THE SIMON

WIESENTHAL CENTER, IS TO DRAG OUT THE PROCEEDINGS SO THAT ‘MAYBE

[THEIR CLIENT] WILL DIE AND WILL GET BIOLOGICAL AMNESTY.’

But removal proceedings occur only

once a defendant is stripped of his or her

citizenship, and denaturalization cases can
take two or three years, perhaps more,
Marcus says.

Many cases that are investigated by the
office are never brought to court, says
Mausner, the former OSI attorney, who is
now involved in intellectual property liti-
gation at Los Angeles’ Berman, Blan-
chard, Mausner & Resser.

“Sometimes, it’s the wrong guy. Some-
times, it’s probably the right guy, but
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investigations can be falsi-
ficd by the foreign countrics
from which they are
obtaincd, asserts Gildea,
noting his claim that the
identity card linking infa-
mous war criminal defen-
dant John Demjanjuk to the
gas chamber at Treblinka is
ong instance of that.

Rosenbaum ecmphatically
denies that claim about the
Demjanjuk case, calling
Gildea’s assertion “outra-
geous.”

Demjanjuk was extradit-
ed from the U.S. to Israel,
where his conviction on war
crime charges was over-
turned by the Israeli
Supreme Court.

Besides documents, wit-
nesses pegging OSI defen-
dants as Nazi war criminals
are the office’s other main
source of cvidence. Bul

they, oo, aren’t infallible, |

Gildea says.

In past cases where he’s
had (o go to Russia to
depose OSI witnesses, he
found those witnesses to be
“totally intimidated by the
presence of the Soviets”
who stood nearby, he says.

The OSI also has eight of the world’s
top World War 11 historians, whom it

deploys throughout Europe in search of

new information in its quest to uncover
more Axis war criminals hiding out back
home, Rosenbaum says.

Documents, according to Mausner, are
probed for their authenticity by hand-
writing experts and chemists. Even
Gildea notes that testing measures have
improved. Experts take ink tests to deter-
mine if it was a iype of ink used during
World War I, he says. They also exam-
ine the type to verify 1 a typewriter {rom
that cra was used or not, Gildea says.

As for witnesses, Mausner says, in
many cascs, they are former war crimi-
nals who have already been prosecuted
in the Soviet Union, and have served
their time. “The witnesses from Israel are
all [Holocaust} survivors,” he says.

Ina 1991 picce in the Nova Law
Review, Mausner notes the difficulty of
finding Holocaust survivors who are able
to testify in OSI cases. “Even if the OS]
is able to locate a survivor who wil-
nessed a certain atrocity, it is often very
difficult for that survivor to identify the
individual who committed the atrocity

The possibility that witnesses are pres-

sured into providing false statements is a
rcal issue when foreign governments want
an OSI defendant extradited Lo their coun-
try to stand trial, he adds.
Rosenbaum says questioning the validi-
o Ly of documents is no longer as common a
© defensc as it once was. “The delense bar
knows thal courts aren’t going to just fall
for that one,” he adds, noting that the doc-
uments arc tested by the “top experts in the
world.”

Though a civil action, a denaturalization case, If ‘fought
tooth and nail,’ can seem much like a criminal matter, says
immigration law specialist James E. Swaine, above.

more than 40 years ago,” he writes.

Hence, the nature of the cases makes for
a very long process, Mausner says. In
some cases, it can take five Lo seven years
after filing the initial complaint “before
you’d actually get him out of the country,”
he says of OSI defendants.

“What most defense lawyers in these
cases do seek to do is delay,” says Rosen-
baum.

Dru Nadler

Aaron Breitbart, a senior researcher at
the Simon Wiesenthal Center in Los Ange-
les, puts defense tactics in a harsher light.
(The Wiesenthal Center is a conservatory
of information on the Holocaust.) A com-
mon strategy of the defendants’ lawyers,
he says, is to try to drag out the proceed-
ings whencver possible with the mindset
that, “maybe [their client] will dic and will
get biological amnesty.”

Gildea denies that he's ever used such a
tactic in any of the OSI cascs that he's han-
died.

“These kinds of cases ar

A
l

HF Nacoag at da
most difficult [cases that deife

handle,” he says.

The OSI has resources Lo investigate
matters, and often it has the cooperation of
foreign governments, Gildea says. But “in
these kinds of cases, {the defense has]
nothing. You have nowhere Lo start except
where the government has you start” when
it lists its allegations, he says. *“. . . It takes
an inordinate amount of time to put togeth-
er the facts.”

Gildea, who has yet (o file a motion in
response to U.S. v Berezowskyj, says he's
likely to seek out another lawyer to help
him with the case. “It’s going to be a very
expensive defense,” he predicts. Bere-
zowskyj, however, has “very little in the
way of assels,” Gildea says.

OSI Senior Trial Attorney Susan
Masling is handling the case for the gov-
ernment, Also on the government’s tcam
are Rosenbaum, OSI Principal Deputy
Director Susan L. Siegal, OSI Tral Attor-
ney Ellen L. Chubin, and John B. Hughes,
a federal prosecutor in the U.S. allorney's
office in New Haven, who will serve as co-
counsel, according to Rosenbaum, |

¢ perhaps the
cnse lawyers]

Scott Brede's e-mail address is
scott.brede @counsel.com



